
 
 

SCRUTINY : 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES, 

PLANNING AND 
COUNTRYSIDE MEETING 

 
4.15 pm MONDAY, 27TH SEPTEMBER, 2021 

 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to 

being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined 
above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Update on Recycling Figures and Future Plans to 
Improve the Authority`s Recovery Rate  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

3 - 10 

4. Update on the Implementation of the Twynyrodyn 
Air Quality Action Plan  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

11 - 16 

5. Forward Work Programme 2021/22   

 To consider the attached report 
 

17 - 28 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair. 
 

 

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

  
COMPOSITION: Councillor D Sammon (Chair) 

                 D Jones (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors: M Colbran, J Davies, L Davies and 

C T Jones 
 
Co-optee(s): R Holdaway, J McCarthy and P Star 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Update on Recycling Figures and Future Plans to 
Improve the Authority`s Recovery Rate. 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The report provides information on the council`s recovery (Recycling, composting 

and preparation for re-use) rate for 2021 as well as comparative figures for the first 
quarter periods of 2020 and 2021. Comparative figures have also been included for 
schools recycling rates and the educational/enforcement processes carried out by 
the Waste & Recycling Wardens. Comparisons of each of the last three years of 
residual waste collected per person are also included. 

 
1.2 The report highlights the service changes and projects that have been implemented 

to support the improvement of our recovery rate, identifies risks/barriers and future 
plans to achieve Welsh Government`s 2025 target of recovering 70% of municipal 
waste collected by the Authority. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(s) 
 
2.1 That the scrutiny committee discusses and comments on the issues set out in the 

report. 
 
2.2 That a task and finish group be set up to explore recycling in the County Borough to 

identify how the recycling rate can be increased and how this may impact on Fly-
tipping statistics and offer possible actions and solutions. 

 
 

Date Written 10th September 2021 

Report Author Paul Davies/Steve Thomas  

Service Area Neighbourhood Services 

Committee Date 27th September 2021 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  
 
3.1 In order to achieve Welsh Government recovery targets the Authority has to continue 

to improve its waste service delivery to increase the amount of waste that is diverted 
to recovery and reduce the amount of residual waste collected being sent to EfW 
(Energy from Waste). 

 
3.2 The two key drivers below, to support achieving the targets, are monitored as Waste 

Services performance indicators: 
 

 Amount of municipal waste collected by the Authority that is recycled, 
composted or prepared for re-use. 
 

 The amount of residual waste collected measured in kg/person. (This 
performance Indicator (PI) replaced the previous PI of the amount of waste 
sent to landfill, three years ago). 

 
3.3 Both targets become more onerous incrementally with the current recovery target of 

64% increasing to 70% in 2024/25 and to zero waste by 2050. The residual waste PI 
is set by the Authority and decreases each year towards a 30% residual waste target 
by 2024/25. 

 
3.4 Another driver to help us achieve the target is the potential fine of £200/tonne for 

every tonne of waste we fall short of the target by, which is incurred if we fail. Failing 
the target by 1% would cost the Authority approximately £50,000. 

 
3.5 The Authority has continued to meet the relevant target (58%) each year between 

2015/16 and 2018/19. The increased target of 64% in 2019/20 was also met and 
provisional data for 2020/21 suggests that this will also be reached.  

 
3.6     The challenge for the Council is to continue improving incrementally towards the 

2025 figure of 70% and beyond. 
 
 

4.0 WHERE WE ARE 
 
4.1 Since the Authority changed the kerbside recycling service to a source separated 

collection and reduced the capacity of residual waste in 2015 the Welsh 
Government`s targets have been met each year. The 2020/21 recovery rate is still 
provisional and a confirmed figure will not be available until October/November 2021.  

 
4.2      Prior to 2015/16 we failed to meet each annual target. Table 1 illustrates this. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



Table 1 
 

 
 
             
4.3  A new Performance Indicator was introduced in 2018 to record the amount of 

residual waste generated per person per year. The target was not achieved in 
2018/19 but has been achieved in the two subsequent years, as illustrated in Table 2 
below. 

 
Table 2 

 

   
4.4 The reduced capacity residual collections have been supported since 

implementation, to ensure no excess waste is collected through an 
educational/enforcement procedure operated by the Waste & Recycling Wardens. 
Table 3 demonstrates the amount of actions taken against residents putting out 
excess waste for the periods September 2019 – March 2020 and September 2020 to 
March 2021. No actions were taken between those periods due to Covid 19 
restrictions. 

 
Table 3 

 
Time periods Letters issued Sections 46s 

issued 
Fixed penalties 
issued 

Court Cases 

19/09/2019 -
19/03/2020 

627 66 7 2 

     

19/09/2020 - 
19/03/2021 

478 59 11 5 

 

18/19 19/20 20/21 

Total Target Total Target Total Target 

185.2 183 178.4 179 161.7 174 

Page 5



Although the amount of offences has decreased in the second period, the number of 
FPNs and prosecutions increased.  

 
4.5 Commencing in 2019, using the same legislation (Environmental Protection Act 

1990, section 46), recycling contained within the wheeled bin was addressed utilising 
a similar procedure to the excess waste policy, under the project name Keeping up 
with the Jones`s. The Waste & Recycling Wardens attend pre-selected streets on 
wheeled bin collection days and check whether there is recycling contained in the 
bins. Where recycling is found the 3 stage process as outlined in the table above is 
implemented. Each phase of the project lasts six weeks (three collections), covering 
approximately 3,000 properties. 

 
4.6 Table 4 below illustrates the comparison of each stage of the process between 

September 2019 – March 2020 and September 2020 – March 2021. 
 

Table 4 
 

Phase Date started Educational 
Letters 

Section 46 FPNs Prosecutions 

1 16/09/2019 437 62 1  

2 28/10/2019 202 40 2 1 

3 12/12/2019 137 26 2  

4 07/02/2020 118 10 0  

  894 138 5  

Phase Date started Educational 
Letters 

Section 46 FPNs  

5 07/09/2020 289 40 0  

6 19/10/2020 271 33 1  

7 30/11/2020 80 8 2 1 

8 25/01/2021 83 12 0  

9 08/03/2021 83 5 0  

  806 98 3  

 
 
4.7 In September 2020, an exercise to determine the recovery rate at schools was 

implemented and showed the rate across all schools to be 55.62%. The same 
methodology was applied in September 2021, which showed an increase to 59.54%. 

 
4.8 For the same periods as 4.6 (shown above) the amount of residual waste    

generated at each school was divided by pupil numbers to determine the amount of 
waste the schools generated per pupil. In September 2020 the overall average 
school figure was 174kg/pupil/annum. In September 2021 this figure reduced to 
160kg/pupil/annum. 

 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 The provisional recovery rate for the first quarter of 2021/22 is 68.67%. This is an 

improvement on the previous year`s quarter 1 figure of 65.92%. Confirmation of the 
first quarter rate will be provided with last year`s annual rate by Welsh Government 
in October/November this year. 

Page 6



5.2  The provisional data on residual waste collected per person for quarter 1 2021/22 is 
41.1kg. This is an increase on the same period for 2021 of 35.05 kg/person. 

 

5.3    The table below shows the amount of excess waste engagements for quarter 1 of 
2021/22. 

 

Table 5 
 

Time Periods  Red tags 
issued 

Sections 46s 
issued 

Fixed penalties 
issued 

Court Cases 

01/04/2021 - 
30/06/2021 

149 11 0 0 

 

 

5.4 The figures for first two phases of the second visit around the County Borough of 
2021/22 for the KUWTJs project are illustrated in Table 6 (below): 

 
Table 6 

 
 

 
 
 
 
From phase 10 of the KUWTJ`s project, the Wardens have commenced going 
around the County Borough for the second time. The amount of properties visited per 
day has increased to 350 from 300. 

 
5.5  Between January and April 2020, the Waste & Recycling Wardens carried out a 

participation monitoring exercise across the County Borough at 7,000 properties. The 
exercise was to determine how many households were recycling at least one 
material on collection day. The result was that 86% of properties visited had placed a 
food bin or recycling box or both for collection. 

 
5.6 A temporary Waste & Recycling Warden was appointed in May 2021, funded by 

Welsh Government`s Circular Economy Fund, for one year to support the excess 
waste education/enforcement service. 

 

5.7 We purchased additional recycling boxes with funding from Welsh Government`s 
Circular Economy Fund and distributed to all resident`s that required them, so that 
glass and card could be collected separately. This has improved both the quality of 
those materials collected and the amounts that are captured for recycling. 

 

5.8 The Re-use shop officially opened in May 2021 with initial indications being that the 
service has got off to a successful start in terms of quantities of materials arriving at 
the shop as well as the amounts being sold on. Between April and August 2021, 35 
tonnes of items have been sold to local residents. 

 

5.9 With funding, again from the Circular Economy Fund, Recycle on the Go bins, which 
are designed to collect cans, plastic bottles and glass along with residual waste have 
been purchased. The bins will replace some litter bins across the County Borough at 
strategic locations where footfall is heavy and will be in place in a phased roll out 
between September and November this year. 

Phase Date started 
Warning 
Letters Section 46 FPNs Prosecutions 

10 10/05/2021 50 5 0 0 

11 21/06/2021 49 6 0 0 

Page 7



 

5.10 A trial commenced in July 2021 at the Dowlais HWRC to physically extract recyclable 
items from litterbin waste collected by the Street Cleansing and Parks Departments. 
Between July and August HWRC operatives have managed to sort through 21.5 
tonnes of litter bin waste, of which 87.39% has been extracted for recycling.  

 
5.11  Between May 2021 and July 2021 a collection of plastic film trial, in Partnership with 

WRAP Cymru and Blaenau Gwent CBC was introduced to 12,000 households 
across the County Borough. WRAP will provide a report on the findings of the trial in 
due course. 

 
5.12 There have been a number of barriers presenting a risk to us achieving the targets 

that have been applied to certain materials by Natural Resources Wales`s stricter 
reporting guidance, in 2021 listed below: 

 

 Carpets sent for recycling at Equestrian tracks can no longer count towards 
recycling. There are currently no other outlets for this material so no carpets 
have been recycled in this financial year. This will impact our recovery rate by 
approximately -1%. 

 

 Wood recycling will only count for us if it is sent to board manufacture. We will 
still achieve the contract recovery rate of 75% but it is unlikely we will achieve 
rates as high as the 93% that we were achieving, in the immediate future. 

 

 In April this year our Contractor informed us that they could no longer recycle 
our mattresses. We now send them to a different reproccessor that can only 
supply us with a 75% recovery rate as the outlets are only available for the 
steel content. This figure is now typical throughout that industry. Previous 
recycling rates were between 95 – 100%. 

 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 
6.1 We want to meet and exceed the Welsh Government`s recovery targets, making 

continual incremental improvements each year to help achieve that goal and to be 
one of the best performing Authorities in managing our resources sustainably, 
Nationally. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 
7.1 We are currently working in partnership with WRAP Cymru, who have identified, 

through a study of our benchmarking and waste data flow data, low yields of dry 
recycling and higher residual waste arising, compared to other Authorities. To help 
address this WRAP will carry out a study of our operations during September and 
report on the outcomes of that exercise. 

 
7.2 Once the kerbside plastic film collection trial report has been provided to us by 

WRAP a decision can be made on whether to implement a permanent plastic film 
collection or not. 

 

7.3 Funding through the Digital Transformation Fund is being sought for the provision of: 
 

Page 8



 Number plate recognition at the HWRCs to help deter trade waste being 
deposited at the sites. 

  

 The provision of a digital promotion vehicle to advertise key messages at 
various locations will be deployed. 

 
Funding has been received through the RTI plan for In-cab radios and an upgrade to 
the electronic route optimising system, which will reduce the amount of missed 
collection returns and improve round efficiencies. The funding will apply from April 
2022. 

 

7.4 Our textile contractor will be operating a school collection service from September 
2021, called the Ragbag scheme to help generate a higher quality material 
collection. Wilcox will contact each school within the County Borough directly. We 
have sent each school an e-mail to advise them to expect this correspondence. 

 
7.5 Continue to investigate the potential for collecting minor waste streams such as 

polystyrene. 
 

7.6  A change to legislation on trade textiles and WEEE collections requiring both Local 
authorities and the private/voluntary sectors to collect textiles and Small 
electrical/electronic items to be collected separately. These statutory instruments 
(SIs), applicable from October 2021, aim to increase recycling from non-domestic 
premises. The SIs will be brought under Part IV of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 
and the Waste (Wales) Measure 2010. These materials will be collected utilising an 
existing waste services vehicle. 

 
7.7 WRAP Cymru are currently producing a report on the benefits/dis-benefits of 

recycling Absorbent hygiene products by the Council. The results of this are to be 
provided in September. 

 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The Waste Services Department contributes to the Council`s environmental 
wellbeing objective: communities protect, enhance and promote our environment 
and countryside. 

 

JUDITH JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER FOR PLANNING AND 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR PLANNING 

AND NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Update on the Implementation of the Twynyrodyn 
Air Quality Action Plan 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Following the implementation phase of the Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP), air quality 

has continued to be monitored in order to assess the effectiveness at reducing NO₂ 
concentrations within and around the Twynyrodyn Street AQMA.   

 

1.2 NO₂ concentrations were shown to have reduced within the AQMA post-traffic 

reversal however, whilst monitoring has continued during the Corona-virus 
pandemic, the data gathered is anomalous due to the reduction in traffic movement 
associated with it.         

 

1.3 Early indications of NO₂ reductions because of the traffic reversal are anticipated to 

be further evidenced by current and future data gathering and ongoing monitoring.       
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 That the scrutiny committee discusses and comments on the issues set out in the 

report.      
 
2.2. That the scrutiny committee identifies any further information they would like to 

receive.  
 
 
 
 

Date Written 2nd September 2021 

Report Author Lucy Marley 

Service Area Neighbourhood Services 

Committee Date 27th September 2021 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Environment Act 1995 introduced a system of Local Air Quality Management for 

the UK, to ensure pollutant concentrations are within National Air Quality Standards 
designed to protect public health and the environment.  

 
3.2 The Local Authority, through the Environmental Health Department, carries out 

routine air quality monitoring to determine whether air quality standards, which are 
prescribed in law, are being breached.  This includes monitoring short term, monthly 

and annual NO₂ concentrations.  Meteorological data and traffic data are also 

considered when analysing the concentrations of NO₂.   
 
3.3 As a result of the monitoring undertaken within the Borough, elevated concentrations 

of NO₂ were detected on Twynyrodyn Road.  National Air Quality Standards for the 

annual mean NO₂ concentration of 40µg/m³ had been exceeded.   

 
3.4 Where elevated concentrations of pollutants have been identified, a detailed 

assessment is required to be undertaken.  A detailed assessment relating to the 

concentrations of NO₂ on Twynyrodyn Road has previously been made and 

published.   
 
3.5 The assessment concluded that it was necessary to declare an Air Quality 

Management Area (AQMA) in accordance with our duty under the Section 83(1) of 
the Environment Act 1995, which requires the Local Authority to designate those 
areas where the air quality objectives are not being met and where people are likely 
to be regularly present.  The AQMA was subject to a previous Council report and 
was declared on 31st January 2017. 

 
3.6 Following the declaration, the Local Authority is required to produce an air quality 

action plan (AQAP) detailing the measures that will be undertaken to reduce the 

concentration of NO₂ to an acceptable level.  The plan must be completed and 

submitted to Welsh Government (WG) within 18 months of the declaration of the 
AQMA.   

 
3.7 An AQAP was produced and proposed a range of measures from which viable 

options were determined.  The options were then subject to a 12 week period of 
public consultation to see views on it both generally and specifically on proposed 
engineering/traffic management changes which were deemed to be potential 

solutions for bringing about a reduction in the concentration of NO₂ to an acceptable 

level.   
 
3.8 The results of the consultation exercise were analysed by the Environmental Health 

Officers and Highways Engineers in conjunction with Corporate Communications.  
The majority of the public and other stakeholders, including Public Health Wales and 
the Cwm Taff Health Board favoured option 1a which proposed reducing the volume 
of traffic on Twynyrodyn Road as a whole by providing an alternative northbound 
route for vehicles using the roundabout outside Tesco.  

 
 
 

 

Page 12



4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 A report on the Twynyrodyn AQMA and proposed AQAP designed to bring about a 

reduction in NO₂ concentrations to within acceptable parameters, was last brought 

before scrutiny on 18th June 2018, with a report requesting approval of the AQAP 
being agreed by full Council on the 27th June 2018 and subsequently submitted to 
and approved by Welsh Government on 17th July 2018.   

 
4.2 A report requesting approval to create a permanent Traffic Regulation Order under 

the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to reverse the traffic flow in Pontmorlais High 
Street was agreed by Cabinet on the 24th October 2018.  

 
4.3 Following a tender process in accordance with the Council’s procurement 

regulations, Alun Griffiths were awarded the contract to carry out all necessary works 
to reverse the traffic flow through Pontmorlais High Street.  Implementation of the 
traffic reversal was effective from 28th May 2019 and cost £105,264.   

 

4.4 Monitoring of NO₂ has continued to be monitored within the AQMA as well as the 

surrounding area to assess any negative effects on roads outside of the AQMA.  The 
automatic ECC monitor was also relocated to Pontmorlais High Street to be co-
located with diffusion tube monitoring sites.    

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The effects of the Corona-virus pandemic and associated lockdown have positively 

affected concentrations of NO₂ across the Borough as expected due to the reduction 

in traffic movements, including in and around the AQMA.  Despite a reduction in NO₂ 
concentrations post-traffic reversal in 2019, it has not been possible to obtain 
sufficient data throughout 2020 which reflects normal life and therefore traffic 
movements for a long enough period to ensure initial reductions would be 
maintained long-term.   

 

5.2 It was previously hoped that if data for 2020 demonstrated consistently reduced NO₂ 
concentrations within acceptable parameters, the AQMA could be considered for 
revocation.  Due to the anomalous data for 2020, this is not currently possible and 

further monitoring is required.  If additional data demonstrate annual mean NO₂ 
concentrations remain below 36µg/m³, this will enable the AQMA to be revoked in 
the future.   

 
5.3 Notwithstanding the above, early indications suggest the traffic reversal has been 

effective at reducing concentrations of NO₂ along Twynyrodyn Road.  Data for 

periods 6-12 of 2019 showed a 13.4% reduction in NO₂ concentrations across the 

AQMA compared to the same period of the previous year.  
 
5.4 Although no traffic surveys have been carried out in 2020, data for January to March 

of 2019 compared to the same months for 2020 showed a reduction in NO₂ 
concentrations within the AQMA, continuing from the reductions already seen post-
traffic reversal.  Monitoring of Pontmorlais High Street has not revealed a notable 
increase, further supporting success of the traffic reversal.   

 

Page 13



5.5 An additional monitoring location established to address concerns of residents at 
Cae Draw Flats of increased air pollution has consistently shown concentrations well 
within the AQS objective.   

  
5.6 Implementation of the dualling of the A465 commenced during May 2021.  Particular 

attention will be paid to dust generated by the works and the contribution to levels of 
PM10 and PM2.5.  The Environmental Health department is in regular contact with 
Future Valleys Construction, the lead contractor overseeing the project.   

 
5.7 In addition to issues associated with the preparatory ground and construction works, 

close attention will also be paid to concentrations of NO₂ at locations where an 

increase of traffic is likely due to the associated diversionary routes.  Currently there 
is no indication that altering the monitoring network, or taking any other action due to 
diversions being temporary, is necessary.  However, this will be kept under constant 

review and should any areas see significant increases in NO₂ concentrations for 

prolonged periods, the monitoring network will be updated.   
 
5.8 The new bus interchange has also come into operation from June 2021.  Four 

additional monitoring locations have been added to the existing monitoring network 

to monitor NO₂ concentrations around the vicinity of the new interchange.  At the 

time of writing, initial data from the additional monitoring locations indicate NO₂ 
concentrations well below the AQS objective.    

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 The aim is to revoke the existing AQMA.  In order to do so, further monitoring is 

required to demonstrate that the annual mean NO₂ concentration within the AQMA 

remains less than 36μg/m³.  Revocation will be considered in detail and will occur 
only if, in conjunction with monitoring evidence, future exceedances are unlikely.  
This will substantially reduce the likelihood of having to re-declare the AQMA.  

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 

7.1 Continue to monitor concentrations of NO₂ and review the results to establish 

whether the traffic management changes are effective in reducing concentrations of 

NO₂ to below the air quality objective in the AQMA.   

 
7.2 Monitor the impact of the changes to air quality outside of the AQMA to ensure that 

other areas have not been adversely affected by the changes such that the air 
quality objective is breached.    

 
7.3 Further traffic surveys will be conducted on Twynyrodyn Road, Pontmorlais High 

Street and Avenue de Clichy to monitor traffic flows.  Additionally, traffic surveys may 
be considered at areas with significantly increased traffic due to diversions 
associated with the A465 dualling works.    

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The implementation of the AQAP has contributed to the Council’s wellbeing objective 
‘Environmental Wellbeing’.  In producing and implementing the AQAP the 5 ways of 
working have been considered.  The plan is designed to secure long-term benefits to 

Page 14



public health.  We have used data to identify trends in air quality and taken action to 
prevent deterioration, which would negatively impact on health and wellbeing.  If 
successful, the Plan will deliver health benefits to the local population long into the 
future.  We have integrated our approach and have been mindful of the impact of our 
actions on others and any potential unintended consequences.  The success of the 
Plan is reliant on co-production and collaboration between departments to secure a 
successful outcome.  Stakeholders have and continue to be involved in the 
development of the Plan and are important contributors to monitoring and review.    

 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE / CHIEF 
OFFICER: COMMUNITY REGENERATION 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
DEPUTY LEADER / PORTFOLIO 

MEMBER FOR REGENERATION; 
TRANSFORMATION, & 
COMMERCIALISATION 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of 

Document(s) 
Document(s) 

Date 
Document Location 

Detailed 
Assessment for 

Twynyrodyn 
Road 

 

16/11/2015 https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-
food-hygiene/air-pollution/ 

 

Welsh 
Government 
Local Air Quality 
Management in 
Wales Policy 
Guidance 

June 2017 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-
04/local-air-quality-management-in-wales.pdf 
 

2017 Air Quality 
Progress Report 

2017 https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-
food-hygiene/air-pollution/ 
 

Air Quality Action 
Plan 

June 2018 https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-
food-hygiene/air-pollution/ 
 

Air Quality 
Progress Report 

2018 https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-
food-hygiene/air-pollution/ 
 

Air Quality 
Progress Report 

2019 https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-
food-hygiene/air-pollution/ 
 

Air Quality 
Progress Report 

2020 https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-
food-hygiene/air-pollution/ 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the 
Council’s Constitution?  
 

 
No 

 
 

Page 15

https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/local-air-quality-management-in-wales.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/local-air-quality-management-in-wales.pdf
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/resident/pests-pollution-food-hygiene/air-pollution/


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2020/21  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its draft work programme for consideration 
and to prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Draft Forward Work Programme and 
approves, revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the 
questions at 3.7 in planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached Draft Forward Work Programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 15th September 2021 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 27th September 2021 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 18



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 19



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 20



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 22



Neighbourhood Services, Countryside & Planning Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focuss ed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 

outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Cabinet Member & 
Officer(s)  

Scrutiny Focus  Cross-Cutting Strategies 
and Plans 

14/06/2021  

Draft Committee Work 
Programme 2021-2022 

 Committee Chair 

 Committee Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and 

to officially agree and sign off the Work Programme for 

2020-2021 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our community 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

14/06/2021   

Nappy Recycling 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Waste Services Manager 

Driving Improvement in Public Services: Nappy recycling is 
a topic which Committee Members unanimously agreed 
needs to be explored in more detail as it may help with 
future recycling targets and go some way towards fulfilling 
our collective responsibilities of reducing landfill / 
incineration figures. 
Cllr Lee Davies and Cllr Declan Sammon undertook 
research and forwarded all information to MTCBC 
Officers.  The Committee will now receive a report which 
has developed Committee Members findings to explore in 
greater detail the resources that would be required to roll 
out nappy recycling across Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our community 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

Beyond Recycling  

05/07/2021 

Asset Management 
Plan 
 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Estates Manager 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  This report is to give Members 
details of what property assets are held by the Local 
Authority and discuss how the Authority decides on what 
assets should be disposed of and future plans for assets. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our community 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

05/07/2021 

Planning 
 
INFORMATION REPORT 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Planning Officer(s) 

Driving Improvement in Public Services:  Planning has been 
a source of frustration for some residents due to the 
challenges faced to make decisions based on local needs 
without fear of financial penalty.  This is a common query 
faced by Elected Members when working within their 
communities. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

P
age 23



Neighbourhood Services, Countryside & Planning Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focuss ed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 

outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 *  Draft Plan – currently under development by Welsh Government  

A report has been requested to enable Committee 

Members to gain information on Planning, to understand 

what is involved in a material planning application and to 

explore whether the planning process can be changed and 

establish who would need to be lobbied in order to make 

changes. 

On completion of this, the Committee Chair will provide 

an update to Members of the Planning Committee, who 

would also like information on how public involvement at 

meetings can be developed.  It is proposed that following 

this item, a Members Workshop will follow in due course. 

20/09/2021 

Recycling & Fly-Tipping 
 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Waste Manager 

 Environmental Health 
Manager 

Scrutiny and Challenge / Driving Improvement in Public 
Services:  Committee Members have requested an update 
on recycling figures and future plans to improve recycling 
rates.  The Committee would also like to explore data in 
relation to recycling rates in our schools. 

It is proposed a Task & Finish Group be set up to explore 
recycling throughout the County Borough with a view to 
identifying how it can be increased; and how this may 
impact on Fly Tipping statistics with possible actions and 
solutions offered.    

This report will then be forwarded onto the Regeneration 
and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee who now deal 
with fly-tipping. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

 
WG Litter & Fly-Tipping Plan* 

P
age 24



Neighbourhood Services, Countryside & Planning Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focuss ed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 

outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  

20/09/2021 

Air Quality 
Management - Action 
Plan  
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Environmental Health 
Officer 

 Highways & Engineering 
Officer 

Information Report - Air Quality Management Area.    As 
the Neighbourhood Services Committee have previously 
received two reports on this issue, it was felt that 
Members there would be value in receiving an update on 
pollution and air quality around Twynyrodyn Road and the 
Tesco Roundabout to scrutinise whether there have been 
changes noted since the one-way system was reversed. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

01/11/2021 

Local Development 
Plan Annual Monitoring 
Report 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Principal Planning Policy 
Officer 

Provide Critical Friend Challenge to Executive Policy and 
Decision-Makers:  Under the provisions of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, all Councils have a 
duty to produce an LDP Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 
which must be submitted to the Welsh Government by 
the end of October each year.  

Scrutiny will – firstly consider whether the policies 
identified in the monitoring framework are being 
implemented, and secondly, consider whether the Plan as 
a whole is working successfully. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

01/11/2021 

Children’s Play Areas / 
Playgrounds 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Committee requests a report 
on children’s play areas within the County Borough as this 
topic is seen as Priority Investment by many members of 
the public. 

The report should give information on the lack of 
investment and damage to equipment; outline how much 
it would cost to update current play areas/parks to their 
original standard of equipment; and establish whether the 
location of play areas leads to damage of equipment (as 
play areas are often situated in isolated locations).  
Members to discuss the report and work with officers to 
explore possible solutions. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

P
age 25



Neighbourhood Services, Countryside & Planning Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focuss ed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 

outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

06/12/2021 

HWRCs – permits and 
booking systems 
 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Waste Services Manager 

Scrutiny and Challenge / Driving Improvement in Public 
Services:  An update on how HWRC’s manage the delivery 
of permits and booking systems.   

The report should outline the “pros and cons” of the 
current system, and provide options for alternative 
procedures looking at what systems other Authorities 
have in place. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

06/12/2021 

Trade Waste Recycling  
 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Waste Services Manager 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  This report has been requested to 
update Committee Members on the implications of new 
legislation coming into effect in July 2021 which effects 
how trade waste is collected and disposed of. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

Beyond Recycling 

17/01/2022 

Carbon Management/   
De-Carbonisation 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chris Jones -Building & 
Property services Manager 

 Iain Goldsworthy – Energy 
Engineer 

Scrutiny and Challenge / Driving Improvement in Public 
Services:  Committee Members have monitored the 
introduction of carbon management systems and 
processes and have requested an update on the impact of 
these (e.g.) savings achieved by the Council with the 
employment of a Carbon Management Officer.   

Additionally, an update is requested on what impact we 
are having in respect of reducing the organisation’s 
carbon footprint and include detail on what the Council is 
doing in relation to renewable energy.    

The report should also refer to statutory and other 
measures reported on by the team; enabling Committee 
Members to scrutinise whether the Council is on track of 
achieving its targets. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

17/01/2022  

Grass Cutting & Bio-
Diversity 
 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

Scrutiny and Challenge / Driving Improvement in Public 
Services:  The Committee has previously received reports 
regarding grass cutting and biodiversity.  An update is 
requested on the new grass cutting schedules developed. 
 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

P
age 26



Neighbourhood Services, Countryside & Planning Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focuss ed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 

outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

  

 Street Scene Manager 
 Ecologist 

Additionally, Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 
sets down a duty requiring all public bodies to seek to 
maintain and enhance biodiversity so far as consistent 
with the proper exercise of their functions and, in so 
doing, promote the resilience of ecosystems.  Committee 
Members are keen to review how the Council is meeting 
its bio-diversity obligations. 

Environment (Wales) Act  

14/03/2022 

Furniture Reuse Shop 
 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Waste Services Manager 

Driving Improvement in Public Service:  Committee 
Members seek a report which offers Committee Members 
an update on the opening of the new ‘Furniture Reuse 
Shop’.  The Committee is keen to identify the benefits this 
shop offers to residents of the County Borough; including 
figures on items provided. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

14/03/2022 

 
 
 

   Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

25/04/2022 

Fleet Management 
 
 

 Portfolio Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Chief Officer –  
Neighbourhood Services, 
Countryside & Planning 

 Fleet Manager 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members have 
received information on the fleet of vehicles due to be 
updated during the financial year.  With this in mind, the 
Committee seeks a report outlining the fleet of vehicles 
being updated / replaced.  This report should also give an 
update on the current status of breakdowns and missed 
collections. 

Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

25/04/2022 

    Focus on the Future: wellbeing 
in our community 

Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

P
age 27



Neighbourhood Services, Countryside & Planning Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/22 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focuss ed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 

outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

Additional topics for consideration 

Topic Source of  Suggestion Description Scheduled 

    

P
age 28


	Agenda
	3 Update on Recycling Figures and Future Plans to Improve the Authority`s Recovery Rate
	4 Update on the Implementation of the Twynyrodyn Air Quality Action Plan
	5 Forward Work Programme 2021/22
	Appendix


